
 
 

PCCS Board of Director’s Meeting 
 AGENDA 

Tuesday, January 24, 2017   7:00 PM 
Comstock Bldg. – Muir Hall 

1591 Jones Point Road - Grayslake, IL 60030 
_________________________________________________________________ 
7PM - Call to Order         Vice President Nick Kotzamanis 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Recognition & Appreciation: Tony Zamiar Exec Director 
 

Mission Moment: School Choice Week Exec Director 
 

Motion to Approve Agenda  
 

Discussion Agenda     
1. Legal Bills: Franzcek Radelet:                                Sept: GSL/SPED:   $ 400.40       
2. Open House(s) 
3. 2nd Reading Policy Revision 500.6 
4. Committee Updates 

 

Public Comment         10 Minutes 
 

Closed Session 
 

Discussion Related to 5ILCS 120/2(c)(1) The appointment, employment of specific employees of the public 
body or legal counsel for the public body. 

5.   Employment of Staff Member(s) 
 

Discussion related to 5ILCS 120/2(c) 21-Discussion of minutes of meetings lawfully closed under this Act, 
whether for purposes of approval by the body of the minutes or semi annual review of the minutes 
mandated by Section 2.06. 

6. Review Closed Session Minutes of Previous Board Meetings. 
    
Consent Agenda 

7. Director’s Report - includes School Team, Business Manager’s and Outreach Report 
8. Financial Statements, Nov/Dec 2016 
9. Motion to Approve Open Session Minutes of Previous Board and Committee Meetings  
10. Motion to Accept Reports on Consent Agenda 
  

Public Comment      10 Minutes 
  
Action Agenda – New Business 
 1A – Authorize Payment of Legal Bills- GSL $ 440.40  
 3A – Approve Policy 500.6 
 5A – Approve Employment of Staff Member(s) 
 6A – Approve Closed Session Minutes of Previous Board and Committee Meetings    
 

Adjourn 
A copy of the board documents for this meeting is available for viewing on the school web site. 

 

 

Thank you for attending the meeting of the PCCS Board of Education. You are asked to limit your remarks to the Public Comment 
opportunities to fewer than four minutes. As a reminder, individual Board members do not respond to public comment.  
 
For questions or comments, please e-mail the Board at board@pccharterschool.org.  
 
The PCCS Board of Directors:  
Jeff Barhorst Marcelo Chiodi  Brian Conlon  
Sean Daw Dan Fedor  Ed Jamison  
Abe Janis Angela Lewis   Nick Kotzamanis   
Sue Ross  



Discussion Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Board of Director’s Policy 

Students 500 Series 
 

Policy # 500.6                      
 
 

Admissions to Prairie Crossing Charter School 
   

 
Prairie Crossing Charter School students are admitted in accordance with the state Charter Schools 
Law.  The application process begins in January when parents are encouraged to fill out an 
application which they can get at the office or from the school website.  After all applications have 
been submitted, returning students are given places as are their siblings if places are available. 

Thereafter, admission is determined by a public lottery.  The lottery and admissions are on a non-
discriminatory basis and open to all students regardless of race, ethnicity, gender, socioeconomic 
status, sexual orientation, religious preference or disability. is a nonexclusive, nondiscriminatory 
process where aAll students who live in Districts 50 and 79 are welcome to apply.  All in-district 
applicants have the same chance of being selected.  Out-of-district applications are also accepted.  
Legal residency must be established as of the day of the lottery for an applicant to be included in the 
in-district lottery process.  Out-of-district students will only be admitted after all in-district student 
applications have been placed during the lottery process. After classes are filled, the lottery 
continues to create a waiting list for each grade.  The application policy and procedures referred to 
below reflect Prairie Crossing Charter School’s intent to maintain integrity and clarity throughout 
the following admission process. 

1. Any student living in District 50 or 79 (in-district) is eligible for free admission to Prairie 
Crossing Charter School (PCCS). Out of district students are eligible on a tuition fee basis. 

2. The registration period runs from approximately January 1 to the last day of February each year.  
During the time, PCCS sends information in English and Spanish to local newspapers, 
community service organizations, and other sources advising the community of opening at the 
school for the coming school year. 

3. During the registration period, families of current students are asked to inform the school as to 
whether the student(s) will return for the coming year.  These families are also asked to submit 
applications for any siblings who wish to attend the school, since siblings are given priority 
where space allows. 

4. Also during the registration period, applications are available online and at the school for any 
interested and qualified families.  These applications must be submitted to the school prior to 
the deadline, usually March 1.  Families with children on the current waiting list are contacted to 
determine whether they are interested in being in the lottery for the next school year.  Except as 
provided for in item #6, the waiting list is not maintained from year to year; a new waiting list is 
drawn each year. 

5. All new applicants to the school and families currently on the waiting list indicating their desire 
to have a child(ren) considered for admission will be given a receipt to document the school’s 
acknowledgement of their application or restatement of their desire for their child(ren)’s 
admission to the school.   

6. At the end of the registration period, the school determines how many spaces are available at 
each grade level after returning students have been tabulated.  Priority for registration at each 
grade level is as follows: returning students, siblings of returning students, in-district applicants 
and finally out-of-district applicants.  If there are more siblings than can be accommodated at 
any given grade level that are on the current year’s waiting list, they will remain on the list in the 
current order.  If there are new siblings to be added to the waiting list, their names will be drawn 
and added to the bottom of the current siblings’ waiting list. 



 
7. Once places have been assigned to returning students and their siblings, students from the 

applicant pool are assigned to the various grade levels.  If there are more students than can be 
accommodated at a given grade level, a lottery is held among new students seeking admission to 
the affected grade levels, beginning at the highest grade level and moving to the lowest.  If 
applicable, a final lottery is held in the same manner at each grade level for out-of-district 
applicants. They will be placed on the wait list immediately following the last in-district 
applicant previously drawn. If any student with siblings in the applicant pool is accepted, his or 
her siblings are automatically given priority as described above (i.e. the siblings are either 
accepted or added to the bottom of the waiting list of other siblings at the appropriate grade 
level).   

8. All lotteries are held in public on a publicly disclosed date as soon as possible after the 
registration period has closed.  Each lottery is held by grade level and priority as described 
above.  Names from a pool of all applicants will be randomly selected to fill each grade level.  
Additional applicants are placed on a waiting list in the order selected, maintaining a priority 
status for siblings.  Beginning with student enrollment for the 2015-2016 school year, the lottery 
must be administered and videotaped by the Executive Director, or designee. The authorizer or 
its designee must be allowed to be present or view the lottery in real time.  The Executive 
Director or designee must maintain a videotaped record of the lottery, including a time/date 
stamp. The Executive Director or designee shall transmit copies of the videotape and all records 
relating to the lottery to its authorizer on or before September 1 of each year.  

9. If during the lottery procedure a name was left out of the drawing for the appropriate grade 
level, one of five scenarios will result. 

a. If the missing name is found before any other grades have been drawn, the lottery for that 
class is repeated with the name included. 

b. If the missing name is found after other grades have been drawn and no siblings are 
impacted, the lottery for the class from which the name was missing is repeated with the 
name included. 

c. If the missing name is found after other grades have been drawn and a student, Student A, 
was accepted into the class as a sibling because of the errant drawing, but is not a sibling 
based on the corrected drawing, the name of Student A and those of the students on the 
waiting list for that grade will be redrawn.  The purpose for this redraw is solely to place 
Student A in the waiting list.  Student A will be placed in the waiting list after the name of 
the student who is drawn immediately before he or she in the redraw.  The order of the other 
students on the waiting list will not change.  If Student A is drawn first, he or she will be 
accepted into the class unless the student at the top of the waiting list is a sibling of a student 
selected in the lottery.  In that case, the sibling is accepted into the class.  If not, the student 
whose name was first on the waiting list will be accepted into the class. 

d. If the missing name is found after other grades have been drawn and a student, Student A, 
was placed above other students on the waiting list as a sibling because of the errant 
drawing, but is not a sibling based on the corrected drawing, the name of Student A and 
those of the students on the waiting list for that grade will be redrawn.  The purpose for this 
redraw is solely to place Student A in the waiting list.  Student A will be placed in the waiting 
list after the name of the student who is drawn immediately before he or she in the redraw.  
The order of the other students on the waiting list will not change.  If Student A is drawn 
first, he or she will be placed first on the waiting unless the student at the top of the waiting 
list is a sibling of a PCCS student or a student selected in the lottery.  In that case, Student A 
will be placed on the waiting list immediately following any siblings of PCCS students or 
students selected in the lottery. 

e. If the missing name is found after other grades have been drawn and a student, Student A, 
was not accepted as a sibling in the errant drawing, but is a sibling in the corrected drawing, 
Student A will be placed in the spot he or she would have been if his or her status as a sibling 
had been known.  If student A is placed into the class, the last person placed in the class in 



 
the errant drawing will become the first person on the waiting list.  No other changes in the 
waiting list will occur. 

10. If after the lottery a student, Student A, was found to have been left out of the drawing, the name 
of Student A and those of the students on the waiting list for that grade will be redrawn.  The 
purpose for this redraw is solely to place Student A in the waiting list.  Student A will be placed 
in the waiting list after the name of the student after whom he or she is drawn.  The order of the 
other students on the waiting list will not change.  If Student A is drawn first, he or she will be 
placed first on the waiting unless the student at the top of the waiting list is a sibling of a PCCS 
student or a student selected in the lottery.  In that case, Student A will be placed on the waiting 
list immediately following any siblings of PCCS students or students selected in the lottery.  If 
Student A is a sibling, he or she will be placed in his or her appropriate spot based on his or her 
sibling status. 

11. All affected families are advised of the results of the lottery as soon as possible in writing and on 
the website. 

12. Students are moved up from the waiting lists as openings occur at their grade level.  When a 
family on the wait list is eligible to be offered a space, the school will contact the family to 
determine their interest in having the child attend the school.  The school will use three working 
days for contacting the family.  The family will be given three working days to notify the school 
of their decision to enroll from the date they are contacted by the school.  Those applicants who 
cannot be reached or who do not respond within this designated period of time will be removed 
from the wait list and will be required to reapply.  The spot will then be offered to the next 
applicant on the wait list.   

13. No priority is given to any applicant to Prairie Crossing Charter School, except returning 
students, their siblings, and siblings of accepted students, as noted above and provided for in 
the Illinois’ Charter Schools Law. 

 

 
Adoption Dates: 

Adopted:  November 15, 2005 
Revised : May 2015 



 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Director’s Report 

 
 

 
 
 
Match – Pace - Lead 
 

With the flip of the calendar page, we find a new year and hit the ground running. Many things 
the same and many are not. As I write this, we are just a few hours away from our political 
climate changing one way or the other for the foreseeable future.   
 
I’ve never seen more people ready to exercise their agency, whether to potentially gain, or to 
preserve and protect. I don’t know what other event could have so profoundly jarred people’s 
consciousness. Within the fissure is opportunity, the potential for a slingshot moment, a step 
that builds tension for an accelerated leap ahead. The one question being, in what direction 
will we go?  
 
The work that begins now is identifying those trim tabs to guide the flight, and insuring that 
the embodied energy accumulating is effectively released and spent on achieving worthwhile 
targets. Too, is the state of culture here at PCCS - as we continue laying the framework for 
reflective evaluations that lead to innovative progress. At times, we've existed in the space 
between intention and implementation, waiting for some magical opportunity to emerge that I 
know we will ultimately need to create and execute. Sometimes simply taking the initiative is 
the real point.  
 
The New Year inspires me to take stock of personal, professional and political evolutions and 
their potential implications. What do I need to redefine, shift? Of course, there can be a 
significant gap between identification and execution. Resolutions fade for a reason. Familiar 
habits can provide compelling comfort, however much the idea of change is appealing. The 
challenge of many sustainable initiatives is overcoming different types of stasis. It’s not a 
matter of not knowing what to do.  
 
The most difficult type of shift is the kind we don’t have to make. Being pushed, however 
upsetting can be a blessing, especially if we were ready to jump anyway. 
 
Here we go… 
 

 

 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Geoff Deigan 
Executive Director                    



Prairie Crossing Charter School 

Business Managers Report 

January 24, 2017 

 

 
 

 The 3rd quarter 2017 GSA payment totaling $1,156,220.28 was received 01/10/2017.   
 

 Grant expenditures submitted for reimbursement: 
 

o IDEA Grant Q2 2017 - submitted 01/12/2017 
o Title I Grant Q1 2017 – submitted 01/12/2017 
o Title II Grant Q1 and Q2 2017 – submitted 01/12/2017 
o Title III Grant Q1 2017 – submitted 01/12/2017 
o Title I Grant Q2 2017 – submitted 01/17/2017 
o Title III Grant Q2 2017 – submitted 01/17/2017 

 

 IDEA grant Excess Cost worksheet due 1/31/2017 was submitted and accepted to ISBE 
on 12/19/2016 
 

 1099’s were prepared and sent to vendors on January 9, 2017 
 

 2016 W-2’s have been prepared by ADP and were disbursed to active employees with 
on January 17th.   2016 W-2’s for terminated employees were mailed on January 17th to 
the last known address 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kim Disalvo 

























































































Outreach   Report   to   BoardJanuary   2017  
 
Outreach   efforts   for   the   second   quarter   of   the   year   included   efforts   to   increase   our   visibility   in 
the   community. 
 
Some   highlights   of   the   last   few   months   include: 

● Continuing   to   partner   with    The   Alliance   for   Human   Services ,   by   providing   free 
classroom   space   for   their   Interpreters’   Training   Class.   They   ran   a   class   late   fall   through 
early   December   and   plan   another   session   in   late   spring.   This   partnership   enables   us   to 
inform   25   interpreters,   students   and   faculty,   who   will   work   with   underserved 
populations,   about   the   opportunity   to   attend   PCCS. 

● Active   involvement   by   parents   serving   on    Outreach   Workgroup . 
● Participation   in   the    Liberty   Prairie   Fall   Festival    in   September,   sharing   information 

about   PCCS   with   visiting   families. 
● Partnered   with    Conserve   Lake   County    at   their   annual   Prairie   Harvest   Fest. 
● Preliminary   discussions   with   representatives   at    Warren   Township   High   School 

about   PCCS   students   attending   WTHS   and   PCCS’   connection   to   the   district. 
● Sponsorship   of    Warren   Township   High   School’s   Centennial   Celebration ,   with 

our   school   name   on   a   banner   at   the   high   school. 
● Meetings   with    Gurnee   Park   District ,   offering   their   preschool   programs   an 

opportunity   to   come   have   a   field   trip   at   PCCS. 
● Food   drive   benefiting    Warren   Township   and   Fremont   Township   Food 

Pantries . 
● Participated   in    PSO   Textile   Drive ,   sharing   information   about   PCCS   with   their 

customers. 
● Trick   or   Treat   bags   with   PCCS   Open   House   information   disseminated   to   over   400 

families   in   Warren   and   Fremont   district   neighborhoods. 
● Hosted   a    Holiday   Marketplace    at   PCCS,   which   drew   hundreds   of   patrons   who 

shopped   and   learned   more   about   PCCS   (as   well   as   advertising   at   local   businesses). 
● Advertised   for   Open   House   in   the    Wildwood   Park   District    Winter   Brochure. 
● Updated   Open   House   Flyer   and   disseminated   a   letter   and   flyer   to   about   400   local 

businesses. 
● Advertising   for   the   Open   House/Lottery   continue   to   be   provided   in   English   and   Spanish 

through   a   variety   of   mediumsnewspapers,   PSAs,   social   media,   online   newspaper 
postings,   etc. 

● January   Open   House   presentation   to   members   of    Gurnee   MOMS   Club    during   one   of 
their   meetings. 

 
The   Lottery   season   began   in   January   and   we   are   hopeful   that,   through   the   online   advertising, 
paper   advertising,   and   social   media   we   will   gain   further   visibility   and   interest   in   our   school. 
Additionally,   word   of   mouth   is   our   greatest   strength   in   drawing   prospective   families   to   PCCS. 
We   encourage   our   families   to   continue   to   support   PCCS   by   sharing   our   message   with   friends, 
family,   and   neighbors.   We   have   onsite   Open   Houses   scheduled   for   Wednesday,   January   25th 
and   Thursday,   February   23rd,   with   our   Lottery   scheduled   for   March   1st.   We   look   forward   to   a 
robust   lottery   season   and   will   share   the   results   at   the   conclusion   of   our   March   lottery. 
 

Respectfully   Submitted: 
Dilrukshi   Dybas 

 



 
 

PCCS Board of Director’s Meeting 
 DRAFT OPEN SESSION MINUTES 

Tuesday, October 25, 2016   7:00 PM 
Comstock Bldg. – Muir Hall 

1591 Jones Point Road 
Grayslake, IL 60030 

_________________________________________________________________ 
 
Members Attending: Mr. Jamison, Mr. Kotzamanis, Mrs. Ross, Mr. Chiodi, Mr. Barhorst, Mr. 
Fedor, Mr. Conlon, Mr. Janis 
 
Staff Attending: Mr. Freeman, Mrs. Loustaunau, Mr. Zamiar, Mr. Deigan 
 
Public Attending: Mr. Doerr 
 
Call to Order: 7:05pm  

Mr. Jamison 
 
Pledge of Allegiance  

Mr. Janis 
 
Recognition & Appreciation: The Board  

Mr. Deigan 
 

Mission Moment: Celebrating Our Diversity – Diwali Celebration   
Mr. Freeman & Mrs. Loustaunau 
 

Motion to Adjourn – Sine Die Seating of Incoming Board Members  
Motion by Mr. Conlon, seconded by Mr. Barhorst 
 

Roll Call to Constitute a Quorum 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’ MOTION CARRIED 
 

Motion to Approve Parent Elect Candidate for Board Appointed Position 
Motion made by Mr. Conlon, seconded by Mr. Kotzamanis 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’ MOTION CARRIED 

 
Election of New Board Officers Facilitated by Exec Director 

Mr. Deigan & Mr. Jamison 
 
Nomination of Mr. Jamison as President by 

Motion made by Mrs. Ross, seconded by Mr. Conlon 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’ MOTION CARRIED 

 
Nomination of Mr. Kotzamanis as Vice President 



Motion made by Mrs. Ross, seconded by Mr. Fedor 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’ MOTION CARRIED 

 
Nomination of Mr. Conlon as Treasurer 

Motion made by Mr. Kotzamanis, seconded by Mr. Chiodi 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’ MOTION CARRIED 

 
Nomination of Mr. Janis as Secretary 

Motion made by Mr. Jamison, seconded by Mr. Kotzamanis 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’ MOTION CARRIED 

 
Oath of Office 

Led by Mr. Deigan, the board members recited Oath of Office 
 
Review and Sign Documents 

Mr. Deigan 
Documents reviewed & signed  

 
Resolution to Adopt Policies, Resolutions and Procedures of Former Boards  

Motion made by Mr. Barhorst, seconded by Mr. Conlon 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’ MOTION CARRIED 
 

Resolution to Employ Legal Counsel: Franczek Radelet P.C.  
Motion made by Mr. Barhorst, seconded by Mr. Conlon 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’ MOTION CARRIED 

 
Motion to Approve PCCS Holdings, LLC Managers: John Wylie, Bob Helle and Eve Lee.  

Motion made by Mr. Kotzamanis, seconded by Mr. Chiodi 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’ MOTION CARRIED 

 
Motion to Approve Agenda 

Motion made by Mr. Barhorst, seconded by Mr. Conlon   
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’. MOTION CARRIED. 

 
Discussion Agenda  

Welcome of New Board Members - Mr. Deigan  
 

Legal Bills: Franzcek Radelet 
Mr. Deigan presented Sept GSL/SPED bill for $267.50   
 
FY16 Audit-  
Mr. Conlon presented results of audit – favorable with a single finding regarding segregation 
of duties that is difficult to address without larger staff  
 
1st Policy Reading – 800 Operational Series  
Mrs. Ross & Mr. Deigan presented policies 
 
Contracts: School Sign, Utility Shed 
Mr Deigan presented contract for School Sign: Discussion among board of cost and value to 
school 
Mr. Deigan presented contract for Utility Shed: Discussion among board of cost and location.  
Clarification of painted versus unpainted requested by Mr. Barhorst, Mr. Deigan to confirm.  
 
Committee Updates  
No updates outside those already discussed 



 
 
Public Comment  

No public comment was made. 
 
Closed Session: 

Mr. Conlon made a motion to move to closed session, Mr. Kotzamanis seconded 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’. MOTION CARRIED 
Enter closed at 7:39 PM 
 
Mr. Conlon made a motion to exit closed session, Mr. Chiodi seconded 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’. MOTION CARRIED 
Exit Closed at 7:55 PM 

 
Public Comment  

No public comment was made. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 

Director’s Report 
Mr. Deigan 
 
Financial Statements, September 2016 
Mr. Deigan 
 
PSO Report 
None 
 
Motion to approve Open Session Minutes of Previous Board & Committee 
Meeting 
Motion made by Mr. Chiodi, seconded by Mr. Barhorst 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’. MOTION CARRIED 
 
Motion to Accept Reports on Consent Agenda 
Motion made by Mr. Conlon, seconded by Mr. Barhorst 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’. MOTION CARRIED 

 
Public Comment  

No public comment was made. 
 
Action Agenda – New Business 
 

2A – Authorize Payment of Legal Bills- GSL $ 267.50  
Motion made by Mr. Conlon, seconded by Mr. Barhorst 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’. MOTION CARRIED 

 
3A – Approve FY 16 Audit from Clifton Larson Allen  
Motion made by Mr. Conlon, seconded by Mr. Barhorst 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’. MOTION CARRIED 

 
5A – Approve Contracts with SignaRama and Northstar  
Mr. Barhorst requested confirmation that the Prairie Crossing Homeowners Association is 
informed of plans for sign 
Motion made by Mr. Conlon, seconded by Mr. Barhorst 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’. MOTION CARRIED 



 
6A –Approve Employment of Staff Member(s) – Mr. Deigan 
Jay Wiltshire as Substitute Teacher at $14/hr 
Steven Hoffman as Substitute at Aftercare $11/hr up to 25hr/week, & $12.50 on an as needed 
basis 
Motion made by Mr. Conlon, seconded by Mr. Barhorst 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’. MOTION CARRIED 

 
7A – Approve Closed Session Minutes of Previous Board and Committee 
Meetings  
None to approve 
Motion made by Mr. Conlon, seconded by Mr. Barhorst 
On a roll call vote all ‘ayes’. MOTION CARRIED 

 
Adjourn 

Motion made by Mr. Conlon, seconded by Mr. Barhorst. On a voice vote all ‘ayes’ MOTION 
CARRIED 
Meeting adjourned at 8:04pm  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Abe Janis 
PCCS Board Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


